
 

BCP Council Civic Centre, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Audit and Governance Committee 
 

Date: Thursday, 20 October 2022 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room, First Floor, BCP Civic Centre Annex, St Stephen's 
Rd, Bournemouth BH2 6LL 

 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Cllr J Beesley 

Vice Chairman: 
Cllr L Fear 

Cllr M F Brooke 
Cllr D Butt 
Cllr M Cox 
 

Cllr A Filer 
Cllr M Howell 
Cllr T Johnson 
 

Cllr M Phipps 
 

 

All Members of the Audit and Governance Committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 

 
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=5529 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact: Democratic Services on 01202 096660 or 

email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or 

email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 
  

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 
 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 12 October 2022 

 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

 

mailto:susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 

 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 

nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 

member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 8 

 To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on 
08 September 2022. 

 

 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 

for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&I

nfo=1&bcr=1 

The deadline for the submission of public questions is 4 clear working days 

before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a statement is midday the working day 
before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 

 

 

6.   Update on Corporate Risk 9 (Maintain a safe and balanced budget for 
the delivery of services) 

 

 To receive a presentation. 

 

 

7.   Update on Corporate Risk 13 (Deliver the transformation programme)  

 To receive a presentation.  

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Info=1&bcr=1


 
 

 

 

8.   External Auditor - Auditor's Annual Report 2020/21 (Value for Money 
report) 

9 - 58 

 The attached report sets out the findings of the Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, 
following their audit of the Council’s Statement of Accounts 2020/2021.  

 

 

 
No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that 

must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.  

 



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Minutes of the Meeting held on 08 September 2022 at 6.00 pm 
 

Present:- 

Cllr J Beesley – Chairman 

   

 
Present: Cllr M F Brooke, Cllr A Filer, Cllr M Howell, Cllr T Johnson, 

Cllr M Iyengar and Cllr L Williams 
 
 

 
127. Apologies  

 

Apologies were received from Cllr D Butt and Cllr L Fear. 
 

128. Substitute Members  
 

Formal notification had been received appointing Cllr M Iyengar as 
substitute for Cllr D Butt and Cllr L Williams for Cllr L Fear. 
 

129. Declarations of Interests  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 

130. Confirmation of Minutes  
 

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2022 were agreed as a correct 

record for signing by the Chairman. 
 

131. Public Issues  
 

There were no public statements, questions or petitions received for this 

meeting. 
 

132. BCP Council Insurance Arrangements  
 

The Head of Audit and Management Assurance and the Insrance & Risk 

Manager gave a presention, a copy of which had been circulated to each 
Member and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in 
the Minute Book. 

 
The presentation provided an overview of the Council’s insurance 

arrangements, including the types of covers the Council does and does not 
have in place. The Committee were told that the Council’s annual internal 
and external insurance spend was £4.2 million. It was explained that this 

gross cost was not drawn entirely from the general fund. This  also included 
costs charged to the Housing Revenue Account (HRA)  relating to the 

5

Agenda Item 4



– 2 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
08 September 2022 

 
Council’s housing stock. The cost of the Insurance team including 5 full-

time employees and also normal excess payments is also included.  
 
The Committee were told that BCP had inherited and been operating with a 

variety of insurance arrangements from the legacy Councils. April 2023 
would be the first time that a fully tendered BCP insurance arrangement 

would be in place. 
 
Members were informed that there are around 800 claims per year on 

aggregate. More specifically, 100 of these claims relate to buildings and 
contents. It was explained that an example of when the number of types of 

claim was high was when the area experienced storms and strong weather 
earlier in the year.  
 

Third party claims totalled 475. Members heard that these claims often 
related to public liability and would normally be due to trips and slips, 

potholes or tree damage for example. 
230 of the claims involved the Council’s other, more specific insurance 
policies. These include: business interruption, official’s indemnity, 

professional negligence, libel & slander, fidelity guarantee, motor, 
mechanical lifting bridges, engineering inspection, engineering insurance, 
fine art, personal accident & marine.  

 
It was explained that the Council repudiated around 80% of the third party 

insurance claims it faced but would pay claims where legally liable. The 
Committee were told that the Council’s Insurance Team were responsible 
for observing trends with the  number of claims in order to monitor the 

Council’s statutory responsibilities were being fulfilled, such as the 
maintenance of potholes. 

 
The Insurance & Risk Manager explained that when the need to claim on 
insurance arose, the Insurance Team would submit an electronic form to 

the insurer as soon as a damage or loss occurred. It was explained that not 
all events were insured and that the Council can, in most intances, choose 

what is covered. This selection of coverage is normally listed as ‘perils’, 
with differing levels of coverage applying to different premises or items.  
 

The Committee were told about the variety of assets, events and situations 
that were covered in the Council’s insurance policy. These premium 

policies included but were not limited to: insurance of the two lifting  bridges 
in Poole, terrorism, drone flying, and select events such as the Air Festival. 
Members heard that it was not economic to insure all risks and that all 

decision that are made around insurance policies are balanced, this 
includes the tendering process.  

 
It was explained that the insurance tender would result in a long-term 
agreement (LTA) which may be linked to inflationary factors each year, 

resulting in a possible increase in absolute cost terms. 
 

The Committee asked questions of the Head of Audit and Management 
Assurance and the Insurance & Risk Manager on the presentation.  

6



– 3 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
08 September 2022 

 
 

It was clarified that the term ‘fidelity guarantee’ related to an event of theft 
by Officers of Council property. It was explained that in the case of 
‘accidental losses’, despite the Council’s reasonable duty of care, damage 

can occur. The example that was used was storm damage. 
 

The Monitoring Officer offered to respond to several questions from 
Councillors outside of the meeting, these questions included: 
 

• Potential conflicts of interest between Council and claimants. 
• Whether there was any cover for the outcome of employment 

tribunals. 
 
The Committee heard that the Council sought to take out cover that was 

widespread, however it could not reasonably cover everything. On this 
basis, the Council’s Insurance Team would learn from events that have 

happened elsewhere and would review claim patterns nationally to assess 
how best insurance coverage should be applied. 
 

Members heard that the Insurance Team had a key role in liaising with 
different services and that observing trends and agreeing mitigations with   
offciers  was imperative to minimize losses and costs to the Council..  

 
It was explained that the claims process would certainly slow down if a 

large volume of claims was received in a short period of time. This was 
evident after the storms earlier this year. There are legal timeframes and 
deadlines, however, that the Insurance Team must work to and these 

timeframes are often very lengthy, giving the team a ‘reasonable’ time to 
respond to complex claims in a manner that is thorough and professional.  

 
The Committee heard that the insurance of highways infrastructure was not 
normally offered by the insurance market and that learning from others was 

a key part in insuring BCPs seafront aspects. 
 
RESOLVED that the Audit and Governance Committee notes the 
update on the BCP Council Insurance Arrangements together with the 
specific additional comments made during the discussion at the 

meeting. 

 

The Chairman thanked officers for their presentation and contributions to 
the meeting. Members were informed that there would be an additional 
Committee meeting that would seek to cover some of the following items: 

the risk register, financial sustainability and transformation. This additional 
meeting was suggested to be on Monday 10 October at 18:00 and would 

be confirmed with Democratic Services nearer the time.  
 
The Chairman gave a short statement on the passing of Queen Elizabeth II 

before bringing the meeting to a close. 
 

NOTE: The Chief Executive announced, during the meeting, that Queen 
Elizabeth II had died. 

7



– 4 – 

AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
08 September 2022 

 
 

 
 
 

The meeting ended at 7.00 pm  

 CHAIRMAN 

8



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  External Auditor - Auditor's Annual Report 2020/21 (Value for 
Money report) 

Meeting date  20 October 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  The attached report, at Appendix 1, sets out the findings of the 
Council’s external auditor, Grant Thornton, following their audit of 
the Council’s Statement of Accounts 2020/2021. The key points to 
note are:  

 They have not yet completed the audit of the Council’s financial 
statements, due to delays in receiving confirmations from the 
auditor of Dorset Pension Fund and a national issue affecting all 
local authorities with material infrastructure balances.  

 The Value for Money (whether the Council has proper 

arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectives in its 
use of resources) conclusions were: 

Criteria Finding 

Financial 
Sustainability 

Significant weakness in arrangements 
identified and 3 key recommendations 
made. One improvement 
recommendation also made.  

Governance No significant weakness in 
arrangements identified, but 4 
improvement recommendations made.  

Improving 
economy, efficiency 
and effectiveness 

Significant weakness in arrangements 
identified and a key recommendation 
made. Five improvement 
recommendations also made. 

 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 The Audit & Governance Committee notes: 

 The delay to the completion of the audit of the financial 
statements, and 

 The findings, recommendations and management 
comments in relation to the Value for Money arrangements  

Reason for 
recommendations 

To ensure that the Audit & Governance Committee are fully 
informed of the findings of the Council’s external auditor following 
their Annual Report for the year ended 31 March 2021, as set out in 
the report attached. 

9

Agenda Item 8



Portfolio Holder(s):  Drew Mellor, Leader of the Council 

Corporate Director  Graham Farrant, Chief Executive 

Report Authors Nigel Stannard nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

Head of Audit & Management Assurance (Chief Internal Auditor) 

Ruth Hodges ruth.hodges@bcpcouncil.gov.uk  

Audit Manager (Deputy Chief Internal Auditor) 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information 
Ti t l e:   

Background 

1. Under International Standards of Audit (UK) (ISAs) and the National Audit Office 
(NAO) Code of Audit Practice ('the Code'), the external auditor is required to 
report whether, in their opinion, the group and Council's financial statements:  

a. give a true and fair view of the financial position of the group and the 
Council and their income and expenditure for the year; and  

b. have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC 
code of practice on local authority accounting and prepared in accordance 
with the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014.  

2. In addition, the external auditor is required to reach a formal conclusion on 
whether the Council has put in place proper arrangements to secure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources (the Value for Money 
conclusion), under the following three areas: Financial Sustainability. 
Governance, and Improving Economy, Efficiency and Effectiveness. 

3. The report attached, at Appendix 1, sets out the findings of the Council’s external 
auditor following their audit work to date on the Councils ’ Statement of Accounts 
2020/21. The audit on the Council’s financial statements is not yet completed but 
key issues arising to date are reported. The Value for Money conclusions, 
findings and recommendations, along with management response are contained 
in the report.  

Opinion on the financial statements 

4. The auditors have not yet given their opinion on the Council’s 2020/21 financial 
statements, due to delays in receiving confirmations from the auditor of Dorset 
Pension Fund and a national issue affecting all local authorities with material 
infrastructure balances.  

5. However, their work to date has not identified any significant unadjusted findings 
in relation to other information produced by the Council, including the Narrative 
Report or Annual Governance Statement.  

6. Two key issues arising from the accounts were identified, in respect of property 
valuations and complexity of accounts & audit process.  

10

mailto:nigel.stannard@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
mailto:ruth.hodges@bcpcouncil.gov.uk


Value for Money arrangements and key recommendations 

7. The conclusions of the external auditor in relation to value for money 
arrangements are summarised as follows:  

Criteria Risk Assessment Finding 

Financial 
Sustainability 

Risk identified due to the 
uncertainties inherent in 
the Council’s plans to 
finance its transformation 
programme.  

Significant weakness in 
arrangements identified and 3 key 
recommendations made. One 
improvement recommendation also 
made.  

Governance No risks of significant 
weakness identified. 

No significant weakness in 
arrangements identified, but 4 
improvement recommendations 
made.  

Improving 
economy, 
efficiency and 
effectiveness 

Risk identified due to 
Ofsted focused 
inspection. 

Significant weakness in 
arrangements identified and a key 
recommendation made. Five 
improvement recommendations 
also made. 

 

8. Four key recommendations were made stating that the Council should: 

i. urgently identify other options to balance the books in the medium term 
should the current Capital Direction proposal not be realised in part or full. 
Specifically, scenario planning assessing what changes to service provision 
(both savings and income growth) would be necessary to enable the Council 
to balance the budget. 

ii. also consider what additional assets could be disposed of to fund 
transformation. Even if the current proposal of a Capitalisation Direction 
comes to fruition, capital receipts will invariably form part of the associated 
strict conditions. If this Direction is not awarded in full, then even more capital 
receipts to fund transformation will be required. 

iii. provide more information on the increasing costs of the transformation 
programme alongside the associated savings, the proposed timelines for 
implementation and ongoing reporting of delivery against these milestones to 
ensure further slippage is minimised and savings and the associated 
improvements in service provision realised. The Council should also ensure 
that periodical clear reporting is provided on the benefits realisation of the 
transformation programme against original expectations. 

iv. continue to address the weaknesses identified by Ofsted to ensure all children 
have access to quality services which meet their needs in a timely manner.  

9. In addition, ten improvement recommendations were made. 

10. Management comments were provided for all recommendations.  

Options Appraisal 

11. An options appraisal is not appropriate for this report.  

Summary of financial implications 

12. Whilst there are no direct financial implications from this report, a number of 
findings and recommendations directly relate to the financial sustainability of the 
Council.  

11



Summary of legal implications 

13. There are no direct legal implications from this report.  

Summary of human resources implications 

14. There are no direct human resources implications from this report.  

Summary of sustainability impact 

15. There are no direct sustainability impact implications from this report.  

Summary of public health implications 

16. There are no direct public health implications from this report. 

Summary of equality implications 

17. There are no direct equality implications from this report.  

Summary of risk assessment 

18. The Auditor’s Annual Report identified a number of risks which were considered 
as part of the Management comments. Where appropriate, these will be further 
considered as part of the wider risk management review process and necessary 
mitigations agreed, 

Background papers 

None 

Appendices   

Appendix 1 – External Auditor – Auditor’s Annual Report 2020/21  

12



13



Commercial in confidence

 

 

14



Commercial in confidence

15



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

16



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

17



Commercial in confidence

18



Commercial in confidence

19



Commercial in confidence

20



Commercial in confidence

21



Commercial in confidence

•

•

22



Commercial in confidence

23



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

24



Commercial in confidence

25



Commercial in confidence

26



Commercial in confidence

27



Commercial in confidence

28



Commercial in confidence

29



Commercial in confidence

30



Commercial in confidence

31



Commercial in confidence

32



Commercial in confidence

33



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

34



Commercial in confidence

35



Commercial in confidence

36



Commercial in confidence

37



Commercial in confidence

38



Commercial in confidence

39



Commercial in confidence

40



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

•

41



Commercial in confidence

42



Commercial in confidence

43



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

44



Commercial in confidence

•
•
•
•
•

45



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

46



Commercial in confidence

47



Commercial in confidence

48



Commercial in confidence

49



Commercial in confidence

•

•

•

•

•

50



Commercial in confidence

51



52



Commercial in confidence

•

•

53



Commercial in confidence

54



Commercial in confidence

55



Commercial in confidence

•
•

•

56



57



T
his page is intentionally left blank

58


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	8 External Auditor - Auditor's Annual Report 2020/21 (Value for Money report)
	Appendix 1 for External Auditor - Auditor's Annual Report 2020/21 (Value for Money report)


